
NEVADA STATE BOARD 
of 

DENTAL EXAMINERS 

Anesthesia Committee Meeting 

Monday, January 8th, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

PUBLIC BOOK 



NSBDE – Anesthesia Committee Teleconference Meeting – Monday, January 8th, 2024 Page 1 

Notice of Agenda & Teleconference Meeting of The Anesthesia Committee 
Meeting Date & Time 

Monday, January 8th, 2024 
6:00 P.M.  

Meeting Location: 

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners 
2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy., Suite 104 

Henderson, NV 89014 

Video Conferencing / Teleconferencing Available 

To access by phone, call Zoom teleconference Phone Number: (669) 900 6833 
To access by video webinar, visit www.zoom.com or use the Zoom app 

Zoom Webinar/Meeting ID: 844 6193 1917 
Zoom Webinar/Meeting Passcode: 347812 

PUBLIC NOTICE:

Public Comment by pre-submitted email/written form, only, is available after roll call (beginning of meeting); Live Public Comment by 
teleconference is available prior to adjournment (end of meeting).  Live Public Comment is limited to three (3) minutes for each individual.  

Pursuant to Section 2 of Directive 006, members of the public may participate in the meeting by submitting public comment in written form 
to: Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 2651 N Green Valley Pkwy, Ste 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014; FAX number (702) 486-7046; e-
mail address nsbde@dental.nv.gov. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Friday, January 5th, 2024, by 4:00 P.M. may be 
entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting 
will be included in the permanent record.   

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners may 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate persons appearing before 
the Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for consideration by the public body; 3) pull or remove 
items from the agenda at any time.  The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional 
competence or physical or mental health of a person.  See NRS 241.030.  Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case 
or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the board may refuse to consider public comment.  
See NRS 233B.126.   

Persons/facilities who want to be on the mailing list must submit a written request every six (6) months to the Nevada State Board of Dental 
Examiners at the address listed in the previous paragraph.  With regard to any board meeting or telephone conference, it is possible that an 
amended agenda will be published adding new items to the original agenda. Amended Nevada notices will be posted in compliance with 
the Open Meeting Law.   

We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the meeting. If 
special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Board, at (702) 486-7044, no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  
Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed. 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) you may contact at (702) 486-7044, to request supporting materials for the public body or you may download the 
supporting materials for the public body from the Board’s website at http://dental.nv.gov In addition, the supporting materials for the public 
body are available at the Board’s office located at 2651 N Green Valley Pkwy, Ste 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014.

Note:  Asterisks (*) “For Possible Action” denotes items on which the Board may take action. 

http://www.zoom.com/
mailto:nsbde@dental.nv.gov
http://dental.nv.gov/


NSBDE – Anesthesia Committee Teleconference Meeting – Monday, January 8th, 2024 Page 2 

Note:  Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or tabled.

1. Call to Order

- Roll call/Quorum

2. Public Comment (By pre-submitted email/written form):  The public comment period is limited to matters
specifically noticed on the agenda. No action may be taken upon the matter raised during public comment unless the matter
itself has been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be limited to three (3)
minutes as a reasonable time, place, and manner restriction, but may not be limited based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson
may allow additional time at his/her discretion.

Pursuant to Section 2 of Directive 006, and extended by Directives 016, 018, 021, 026, and 029, members of the public may
participate in the meeting without being physically present by submitting public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov,
or by mailing/faxing messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Friday, January 5th,
2024, by 4:00 P.M may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received
prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included in the permanent record.

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open Meeting Law Manual,
the Chair may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the
Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious,
slanderous, offensive, inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other speakers.

*3.   Chairman’s Report: Dr. Joshua Branco, DMD, Interim Chair (For Possible Action)

*a. Request to Remove Agenda Item(s) (For Possible Action)

*b. Approve Agenda (For Possible Action)

*4.   New Business: (For Possible Action) 

a. Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Recommendation to the Board to approve or deny The
Puerto Rico MaxiCourse program and Clinical Residency in Implant Dentistry as a Moderate
Sedation Board Approved Course of Study and to Specifically Address Whether Such Course is
for Patients 13 years of age or older. NRS 631.190 & NAC 631.2213 (For Possible Action)

b. Approval/Rejection of Temporary Anesthesia Permit. NAC 631.2254 (For Possible Action)

(1) Joseph L Weber, DMD – Moderate Sedation
(2) Richard C Heinl, DDS – Moderate Sedation

5. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference):  This public comment period is for any
matter that is within the jurisdiction of the public body. No action may be taken upon the matter raised during public comment
unless the matter itself has been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be
limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable time, place and manner restriction, but may not be limited based upon viewpoint.
The Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her discretion.

Pursuant to Section 2 of Directive 006, and extended by Directives 016, 018, 021, 026, and 029, members of the public may
participate in the meeting without being physically present by submitting public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov,
or by mailing/faxing written messages to the Board office. Written submissions should be received by the Board on or before
Friday, January 5th, 2024, by 4:00 P.M in order to make copies available to members and the public.

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open Meeting Law Manual,
the Chair may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the
Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious,
slanderous, offensive, inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other speakers.

6. Announcements

*7.  Adjournment (For Possible Action)
PUBLIC NOTICE POSTING LOCATIONS 

Office of the N.S.B.D.E., 2651 N Green Valley Pkwy, Ste 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 
Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners website: www.dental.nv.gov 

Nevada Public Posting Website: www.notice.nv.gov

mailto:nsbde@dental.nv.gov
mailto:nsbde@dental.nv.gov
http://www.dental.nv.gov/
http://www.notice.nv.gov/


Agenda Item 4(a):

 New Business

Review, Discussion, and Possible Recommendation to the 
Board to Approve or Deny the Puerto Rico MaxiCourse 

program and Clinical Residency in Implant Dentistry as a 
Moderate Sedation Board Approved Course of Study and 

to Specifically Address Whether Such Course is for 
Patients 13 years of age or older. 

NRS 631.190 & NAC 631.2213 (For Possible Action)



    NRS 631.190  Powers and duties. [Effective January 1, 2020.]  In addition to the powers 

and duties provided in this chapter, the Board shall: 

1. Adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

2. Appoint such committees, review panels, examiners, officers, employees, agents,

attorneys, investigators and other professional consultants and define their duties and incur such 

expense as it may deem proper or necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter, the 

expense to be paid as provided in this chapter. 

3. Fix the time and place for and conduct examinations for the granting of licenses to

practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

4. Examine applicants for licenses to practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy.

5. Collect and apply fees as provided in this chapter.

6. Keep a register of all dentists, dental hygienists and dental therapists licensed in this

State, together with their addresses, license numbers and renewal certificate numbers. 

7. Have and use a common seal.

8. Keep such records as may be necessary to report the acts and proceedings of the Board.

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.368, the records must be open to public inspection. 

9. Maintain offices in as many localities in the State as it finds necessary to carry out the

provisions of this chapter. 

10. Have discretion to examine work authorizations in dental offices or dental laboratories.

      [Part 4:152:1951; A 1953, 363] — (NRS A 1963, 150; 1967, 865; 1993, 2743; 2009, 3002; 

2017, 989, 2848; 2019, 3205, effective January 1, 2020) 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-631.html#NRS631Sec368
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/46th1953/Stats195302.html#Stats195302page363
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/52nd1963/Stats196301.html#Stats196301page150
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/54th/Stats196705.html#Stats196705page865
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199313.html#Stats199313page2743
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/75th2009/Stats200929.html#Stats200929page3002
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201706.html#Stats201706page989
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/79th2017/Stats201716.html#Stats201716page2848
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/80th2019/Stats201919.html#Stats201919page3205


  NAC 631.2213  Permit required; qualifications of applicants. (NRS 
631.190, 631.265) 

1. Except as otherwise set forth in NAC 631.2211 to 631.2256, inclusive, no
dentist may: 

(a) Use general anesthesia or deep sedation for dental patients, except in a facility
for which a permit is held as required by NRS 449.442, unless he or she first: 

(1) Obtains a general anesthesia permit; or
(2) Employs a dentist who is licensed in this State and who holds a general

anesthesia permit to administer general anesthesia to his or her patients, and obtains a 
certificate of site approval for each location at which general anesthesia, deep sedation 
or moderate sedation is administered to his or her patients; 

(b) Use moderate sedation for dental patients who are 13 years of age or older,
except in a facility for which a permit is held as required by NRS 449.442, unless he or 
she first: 

(1) Obtains a general anesthesia permit or a moderate sedation permit pursuant
to paragraph (a) of subsection 2; or 

(2) Employs a dentist who is licensed in this State and who holds a general
anesthesia permit or a moderate sedation permit pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 
2 to administer moderate sedation to his or her patients who are 13 years of age or older, 
and obtains a certificate of site approval for each location at which moderate sedation 
is administered to his or her patients who are 13 years of age or older; or 

(c) Use moderate sedation for dental patients who are 12 years of age or younger,
except in a facility for which a permit is held as required by NRS 449.442, unless he or 
she first: 

(1) Obtains a moderate sedation permit pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection
2; or 

(2) Employs a dentist who is licensed in this State and who holds a general
anesthesia permit or a moderate sedation permit pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 
2 to administer moderate sedation to his or her patients who are 12 years of age or 
younger, and obtains a certificate of site approval for each location at which moderate 
sedation is administered to his or her patients who are 12 years of age or younger. 

2. To obtain a general anesthesia permit or moderate sedation permit, a dentist
must apply to the Board for such a permit on a form prescribed by the Board, submit 
any fees that are set by the Board pursuant to NRS 631.345 and produce evidence 
showing that he or she is a dentist who is licensed in this State, and: 

(a) For a moderate sedation permit to administer moderate sedation to a patient 13
years of age or older, the applicant must show evidence of: 

(1) The completion of a course of study, subject to the approval of the Board, of
not less than 60 hours dedicated exclusively to the administration of moderate sedation, 
and the successful administration as the operator of moderate sedation to not less than 
20 patients; or 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec190
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec190
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec265
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-631.html#NAC631Sec2211
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-631.html#NAC631Sec2256
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-449.html#NRS449Sec442
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-449.html#NRS449Sec442
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-449.html#NRS449Sec442
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec345


(2) The completion of a program for specialty training which is approved by the
Commission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association and which 
includes education and training in the administration of moderate sedation that is 
equivalent to the education and training described in subparagraph (1) and: 

(I) Valid certification in Advanced Cardiac Life Support by the American
Heart Association; or 

(II) The completion of a course approved by the Board that provides
instruction on medical emergencies and airway management. 

(b) For a moderate sedation permit to administer moderate sedation to a patient 12
years of age or younger, the applicant must show evidence of: 

(1) The completion of a course of study, subject to the approval of the Board, of
not less than 60 hours dedicated exclusively to the administration of moderate sedation 
to patients 12 years of age or younger, and the successful administration as the operator 
of moderate sedation to not less than 25 patients who are 12 years of age or younger; or 

(2) The completion of a program for specialty training which is approved by the
Commission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association and which 
includes education and training in the administration of moderate sedation that is 
equivalent to the education and training described in subparagraph (1) and: 

(I) Valid certification in Pediatric Advanced Life Support by the American
Heart Association; or 

(II) The completion of a course approved by the Board that provides
instruction on medical emergencies and airway management. 

(c) For a general anesthesia permit, the applicant must show evidence of the
completion of an Advanced Cardiac Life Support course given by the American Heart 
Association or a course providing similar instruction that is approved by the Board, and: 

(1) The completion of a program, subject to the approval of the Board, of
advanced training in anesthesiology and related academic subjects beyond the level of 
undergraduate dental school in a training program as described in the Guidelines for 
Teaching Pain Control and Sedation to Dentists and Dental Students, published by the 
American Dental Association, 211 East Chicago Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60611, and 
available, free of charge, at the Internet 
address http://www.ada.org/~/media/ADA/Education%20and%20Careers/Files/A
DA_Sedation_Teaching_Guidelines.pdf?la=en; or 

(2) The completion of a graduate program in oral and maxillofacial surgery or
dental anesthesiology which has been approved by the Commission on Dental 
Accreditation of the American Dental Association. 

3. A holder of a general anesthesia permit may administer general anesthesia, deep
sedation or moderate sedation to a patient of any age. 
     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, eff. 10-21-83; A by R005-99, 9-7-2000; 
R159-08, 4-23-2009; R004-17, 5-16-2018) 













Agenda Item 4(b):

Approval/Rejection of Temporary Anesthesia Permit  
NAC 631.2254 



NAC 631.2254  Temporary permits. (NRS 631.190, 631.265) 

1. The Board may grant a temporary permit to administer general anesthesia and deep

sedation or a temporary permit to administer moderate sedation to an applicant who meets the 

qualifications for a permit to administer that type of anesthesia or sedation pursuant to NAC 

631.2213. 

2. A temporary permit is valid for not more than 90 days, but the Board may, in any case it

deems appropriate, grant a 90-day extension of the permit. 

3. The Board may require the holder of a temporary permit to pass an on-site inspection as a

condition of retaining the permit. If the holder fails the inspection, his or her permit will be 

revoked. In case of revocation, the holder of a temporary permit may apply to be reinspected in 

accordance with the procedures set forth in NAC 631.2235. 

 (Added to NAC by Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, eff. 11-28-90; A by R005-99, 9-7-2000; R004-17, 

5-16-2018)

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec190
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-631.html#NRS631Sec265
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-631.html#NAC631Sec2213
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-631.html#NAC631Sec2213
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-631.html#NAC631Sec2235


Agenda Item 4(b)(1):

Joseph L Weber, DMD - Moderate Sedation







Agenda Item 4(b)(1):

Richard C Heinl, DDS - Moderate Sedation







Dr. Amanda Okundaye's Professional Input




